
 

1 Rockport Planning Board Minutes 11/17/2020 

 Town of Rockport Planning Board   
Thursday, November 19, 2020 – 5:30 p.m. 

 
Via Zoom and Livestream 

Public Comments accepted via Livestream 
 

Board Present:  Chair Joe Sternowski, Vice Chair John Viehman, Victoria Condon, 
Tom Laurent, Mark Haley, Carter Skemp (alternate), David Pio 

 

 Board Absent:   Ted Skowronski  

 

 Staff Present:  Planner and Community Development Director William Najpauer, 
Rockport AV Technician, Bruce Hilsmeyer  

 
Meeting called to order at 5:30 p.m.  Chair Sternowski seated Mr. Skemp as a full voting 
member for this meeting. 
 
Item #1 - Consideration of a site review application submitted by Five Town CSD 

(MSAD 28) represented by Jonah DeWaters, Oak Point Associates, to construct three 

exterior pavilion structures at the Camden Hills Regional High School located at 25 

Keelson Drive Rockport Map 26 Lot 009 (907 District). 

 
Mr. Sternowski opened the meeting by asking the board members if they had any 
potential conflicts regarding the issue to be discussed.  No conflicts reported, the chair 
then asked Mr. Johan DeWaters to describe the project that is the subject of the 
application. 
 
Mr. DeWaters explained that the project consisted of the installation of three exterior 
pavilions at Camden Hills Regional High School.  Two structures will be located in one 
spot, and a third will be located at a different place.  
 
Mr. Laurent noted that the application said two structures in the cover letter, and that 
was unclear. 
 
Mr. DeWaters explained that two of the structures will be side by side outside the 
cafeteria.  A third will be a trapezoidal structure near the turf area, which will need a 
concrete slab and pathway added; the third structure will have electricity.  For drainage, 
the largest structure will have crushed stone along three sides, and the smaller 
structures near the cafeteria will have crushed stone on one side.  The smaller 
structures will have cantilevered fabric roofs. The construction goal is fall/winter, 2020. 
 
Mr. Sternowski asked Ms. Condon if any public comments had been received thus far; 
she said no. 



 

2 Rockport Planning Board Minutes 11/17/2020 

 
Finding:   Mr. Viehman moved that the planning board consider the site plan as 
provided as a complete application.  
 
Mr. Haley seconded. No discussion followed. 
 
CARRIED 7-0-0 
 
The board next considered the proposed project’s suitability for the 907 district (school 
complex).  Mr. Viehman asked if this conditional use was already approved, and Mr. 
Najpauer said that the pavilions would be considered an accessory use, such as a 
garage or a tower.  
 
Mr. Skemp asked why the plan had come before the planning board, and Mr. DeWaters 
said that planning board approval was required because the structures will be 
permanent; they are considered buildings although they have no walls. 
 
Mr. Sternowski asked if the plan met the setback requirements.  Mr. Najpauer said that 
the setback requirements do not apply because the structures would be within the 
school complex, not near any lot lines. 
 
Mr. Laurent asked if the buildings would add to the existing building footprint.  Mr. 
DeWaters noted that these will be independent structures.  Mr. Najpauer noted that 
schools are exempt from the square footage requirements.  
 
Mr. Skemp pointed out that the LUO section 906.3 D provides an exception for schools, 
but this is a 907 district; Mr. Najpauer replied that the exception is noted in 907.3. 
 
MOTION:  Mr. Laurent moved that the board find that the application meets the 
requirements of section 900.  Mr. Viehman seconded.  
 
CARRIED  7-0-0 
 
 
General performance standards 1305 
 
Mr. Sternowski said that these structures are being built on the school complex.  He 
asked if there will be other groups who may be using them, and if so, what would the 
effect be on parking? 
 
Superintendent Maria Libby said there may be potential community uses, but these 
uses would not be during school hours. 
 
Mr. Sternowski asked if there ‘would be any additional use of the structures during 
school hours.  Superintendent Libby said no.  
 



 

3 Rockport Planning Board Minutes 11/17/2020 

Mr. Sternowski said it does not seem that the structures would have an impact on 
parking and traffic circulation. 
 
Mr. DeWaters noted that the largest structures will be located between the bleachers 
and the maintenance building.  
 
Mr. Skemp said that there should be no disruption from the lights of the structure 
because lighting already exists in that area. 
 
FINDING:   Mr. Pio moved that the board find that the application meets the 
requirements of section 1305.   Mr. Haley seconded. 
 
CARRIED  7-0-0 
 
 
General performance standards, section 800 
 
Mr. Laurent asked if it was correct that the runoff would drip into a gravel drip edge.  Mr. 
DeWaters said yes.  Mr. Laurent asked if the drainage is sufficient for a downpour, and 
Mr. DeWaters said yes, it was. M r. Laurent asked if the drainage would go onto turf, 
and Mr. DeWaters said yes. 
 
Mr. Haley confirmed that two pavilions will be placed on one existing pad, and 120   
cubic feet of soil is to be removed for the larger pavilion near the bleachers and 
maintenance building.  Mr. DeWaters confirmed this.  Mr. Haley said that as long as the 
plan meets 801.2 there should be no issue.  
 
Mr. Sternowski asked if the new structures would draw more staff, other than those 
typically now in school programs, and if there would be a significant impact on the 
parking situation.   Superintendent Libby stated that she has already been approached 
by the Bay Chamber Concerts who asked if they could hold concerts there in the 
summer time. .  During the time when the school is using the new structures, they would 
not incur any additional uses.  Mr. Haley asked, if there were concerts if they would be 
past 10:00 pm?  Mr. Sternowski cited paragraph 801.6 which prohibited the use of 
amplified music on the grounds after 10:00 pm, and asked if that would present a 
problem.  Superintendent Libby stated it would not be an issue for the school, then 
would be permitting another entity to use the facility, she does not believe it would be an 
issue.  Mr. Laurent asked about a rock concert, and Mr. Skemp suggested that they 
could have a concert in the field, and asked if the consideration of the new facilities 
would change the situation.  Mr. Sternowski agreed with Mr. Skemp’s assertion. 
<Shouldn’t the answers to these questions be included in the record?> the answers to 
these questions be included in the record?> 
 
Mr. Haley asked if there would be permit problems if an outdoor concert used amplified 
music.  Superintendent Libby said most likely not. 
 



 

4 Rockport Planning Board Minutes 11/17/2020 

Mr. Laurent asked if the lighting would be visible from an abutting property (section 
801), and it was noted that the lights will be on the underside of the roof. 
 
Regarding 803 (parking), Mr. Sternowski said that it would seem that the new structures 
would not draw more staff, etc., and would not have a significant impact on the parking 
situation. .  Mr. Laurent asked if there was any intention of expanding the parking lot.  
Mr. DeWaters said that there was no intention as part of this project. 
 
Mr. Sternowski asked if there were any other concerns.  Hearing none, he asked for a 
motion. 
 
FINDING:   Mr. Viehman moved that the board find that the application meets the 
requirements of section 800.   Mr. Laurent seconded.  No further discussion. 
 
CARRIED  7-0-0 
 
 
General performance standards, section 1000 
 
Mr. Sternowski noted that in the drawings, a 20 foot separation was indicated as 
necessary between the structures.  He asked if this situation applied here.  
 
Mr. DeWaters said that it does not apply on the larger structure, but perhaps it does to 
the structures near the cafeteria.  Mr. Skemp suggested that the 20-foot requirement 
may have to do with eaves and snow or wind buffeting. 
 
Mr. Sternowski said that the cafeteria structures will need to have this issue addressed. 
Mr. Najpauer said the town code officer will have to resolve it. 
 
Allison DiMatteo noted that the roofs on those two structures will be fabric, a waterproof, 
fireproof vinyl that would be removed in the winter. 
 
Mr. Najpauer said that section 1000 does not apply in this case, because the location is 
not commercial. 
 
Mr. Sternowski asked if there were any other questions. 
 
Mr. Haley asked if there was an issue regarding the number of structures (2 versus 3) 
on page 5.   Mr. Sternowski replied that he believes it is understood that two of the 
structures can be considered “one.” 
 
 
MOTION:  Mr. Pio moved that the Planning Board approve the site review application 
submitted by Five Town CSD (MSAD 28) represented by Jonah DeWaters, Oak Point 
Associates, to construct three exterior pavilion structures at the Camden Hills Regional 
High School located at 25 Keelson Drive Rockport Map 26 Lot 009 (907 District) . 



 

5 Rockport Planning Board Minutes 11/17/2020 

Mr. Viehman seconded.  
 
Discussion:  Mr. Laurent asked if the approval would need a caveat regarding the 20-
foot separation requirement.  Mr. Najpauer replied that a caveat was not needed 
because the project will come under permit review.  
 
CARRIED  7-0-0 
 
Project approved. 
 
 
Item 2: The August minutes are still in progress but will be available for review by 
December 10, 2020. 
 
Item 3: Other business 
 
Mr. Sternowski noted that he will provide a copy of the Maine Municipal proceedings to 
the two new board members. 
 
 
Item 4: Adjournment   
 
MOTION:  Mr. Haley moved to adjourn the meeting.   Seconded by Mr. Viehman. 
 
CARRIED 7-0-0  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:23 PM.    
 

 

Respectfully submitted,  

Fran Hodgkins  


